San José Evergreen Community College District Police Department

Parking and Traffic Code 2018



Table of Contents

Introduction	4
Chapter 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS	5
Section 1.1 Authorities for Conditions and Regulations	5
Section 1.2 Applicability of the Vehicle Code	5
Section 1.3 Authority of Campus Safety Officers and Traffic Campus Safety Officers .	5
Section 1.4 Enforcement of Vehicle Regulations - Citations	5
Section 1.5 Exemption of Certain Vehicles from Regulations	
Section 1.6 Definitions	6
Chapter 2: VEHICLE OPERATION	6
Section 2.1 Violations of the California Vehicle Code	6
Section 2.2 Speed Limits	6
Section 2.3 Reporting of Accidents	6
Chapter 3: VEHICLE PARKING	6
Section 3.1 Parking Prohibited Except in Conformance with this Code	
Section 3.2 Parking Areas - Designation	7
Section 3.3 Parking within Marked Spaces	
Section 3.4 Fire Lands and Landscaped Areas	7
Section 3.5 Parking Areas	7-8
Section 3.6 Parking Areas – Hours of Enforcement	
Section 3.7 "App Enabled Ride Share Service" Pick Up Locations	
Section 3.8 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations	
Section 3.9 Storage of Vehicles	
Section 3.10 Abandoned Vehicles	9
Section 3.11 Impounding of Vehicles	9
Section 3.12 Temporary "No Parking" Signs	9
Chapter 4: PARKING PERMITS	9
Section 4.1 Registration and District Permit Required	9-10
Section 4.2 District Parking Permits – Ownership and Use	10
Section 4.3 Parking Fee Schedule	10
Section 4.4 Parking Fee Refund	10-11
Section 4.5 Carpool Permits	11
Section 4.6 Disabled Persons Parking Permit	11
Section 4.7 Notification of Change of License Plates or Vehicle	11
Section 4.8 Disposition of Registered Vehicle	11

Chapter 4: PARKING PERMITS (continued)	11
Section 4.9 Parking Permit Requests by SJECCD Staff for visitors, educational programs,	
special events or athletics.	11
Chapter 5: ROLLER SKATES, SKATEBOARDS AND WHEELED DEVICES	
Section 5.1 Prohibited Areas	12
Section 5.2 Acrobatic Skating / Skateboarding	
Section 5.3 Reckless Skating / Skateboarding	12
Section 5.4 Motorized Skateboard	13
Chapter 6: BICYCLE EQUIPMENT AND OPERATION	13
Section 6.1 Laws Applicable to Bicycle Use	
Section 6.2 Bicycle Equipment	13
Section 6.3 Bicycle Operation	13
Section 6.4 Excessive Speed	14
Section 6.5 Riding Bicycles	14
Appendix "A"	. 15-19

INTRODUCTION

<u>Purpose</u>

The provisions of this San Jose – Evergreen Community College District Traffic and Parking Code, hereinafter referred to as Code, are adopted for the purpose of promoting safe and orderly movement of traffic and the safe and orderly parking of vehicles, bicycles and other wheeled devices within the properties of the District.

Applications

The provisions of the California Vehicle Code or CVC are applicable within the boundaries of the San Jose – Evergreen Community College District properties, which include San Jose City College, Evergreen Valley College and the SJECCD Milpitas Extension.

Restrictions, Fines and Fees

Parking of motor vehicles and motorcycles on District properties is limited to specially designated areas as set forth in this Code. Fee permits are required as adopted and posted. Use of vehicles or other wheeled devices around District properties are subject to the permission of the San Jose — Evergreen Community College District in accordance with this Code. Faculty, staff, students and visitors to District properties agree to be bound by this Code in exchange for permission to park on District properties. Vehicles or other wheeled devices parked in violation of the provisions of this guide are subject to fines, towing and/or impounding.

Knowledge of Requirements and Restrictions

All persons who enter onto District properties are expected to have knowledge of the provisions of the San Jose – Evergreen Community College District Traffic and Parking Code and are subject to penalties for violations of such provisions. Participation in the parking program is at the discretion of the San Jose - Evergreen Community College District. Suspension of parking privileges may result if circumstances are warranted.

Records and Public Inspection

All current provisions of the San Jose – Evergreen Community College Traffic and Parking Code shall be maintained for public inspection at all times at Police Services.

Questions regarding provisions of the Code can be directed to:

Police Services 408-270-6468

Chapter 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Authorities for Conditions and Regulations

The San Jose – Evergreen Community College District Traffic and Parking Code are promulgated by the Chancellor of the District and in accordance with the Board of Trustees. The Chancellor of the District, in accordance with the Board of Trustees, may change this Code or adopt such additional conditions and regulations as he or she may deem necessary or appropriate, pursuant to Section 21113 CVC.

Section 1.2 Applicability of the Vehicle Code

Provisions of the CVC are applicable on District properties pursuant to Section 21113.

Section 1.3 Authority of Campus Safety Officers and Traffic Campus Safety Officers

Campus Safety Officers (CSO's) and Traffic Campus Safety Officers (TCSO's) employed by the San Jose — Evergreen Community College District Police Department shall have the authority to enforce on District properties the provisions relating to stopping, standing and parking of vehicles, bicycles and wheeled devices contained in this Code and the CVC.

Section 1.4 Enforcement of Vehicle Regulations – Citations

These parking and traffic regulations are enforced through action of the San Jose/Evergreen Community College District Police Department and the Santa Clara County Courts. The District forwards all *parking citations* to the Office of Parking Citations, P.O. Box 11113, San Jose, California 95103-1113. Bail may be posted and forfeited by placing a check or money order, payable to the San Jose/Evergreen CCD, in the envelope provided with parking citations and depositing it in the mail. Hearings regarding contested parking citations may be arranged through the Office of Parking Citations at (800)818-1832. You can also check on the status of your ticket online at www.pticket.com/sjeccd. A citation may be contested by filling out a Request for Initial Review of a Parking Citation form, available at the Police Departments on each college. Copies of all documentation must be included with the form. Results of the review will be mailed.

Failure to appear or deposit bail on a <u>criminal citation</u> within the time designated on the citation may cause a warrant to be issued for a violator's arrest and/or a hold placed on a violating vehicle's registration by the State Department of Motor Vehicles. District police officers are authorized to cite for all violations of the CVC. Bail for Vehicle Code violations, other than parking, is posted at the Office of the Clerk of the Court at the Traffic Facility, 1095 Homestead Road, Santa Clara, California, 95050

Section 1.5 Exemption of Certain Vehicles from Regulations

- (1.5.1) The conditions and regulations regarding driving, operating, stopping, standing and parking shall not apply to any authorized emergency vehicle when such vehicle is operated in response to an emergency.
- (1.5.2) The Chief of Police or their designee may adopt regulations temporarily exempting vehicles bearing special permits from certain conditions and regulations regarding driving, operating, stopping, standing and parking.

Section 1.6 Definitions

Definitions and terms used in this Code are set forth in Appendix "A".

Chapter 2: VEHICLE OPERATION

Section 2.1 Violations of the California Vehicle Code or CVC

Any violation of this chapter may be cited pursuant to the appropriate California Vehicle Code (also referred to as the CVC) section and, if cited, shall be subject to all appropriate penalties. Violations involving District vehicles will be reported to the respective department supervisor responsible for use of the vehicle or subject to court action, depending on the severity.

Section 2.2 Speed Limits

Unless otherwise provided in this Code, the speed limit on any roadway within the District is fifteen (15) miles per hour.

Section 2.3 Reporting of Accidents

The driver of any vehicle involved in an accident on District property which results in death or injury to any person, damage to the property of any person or any damage to District owned property shall report such accident to Police Services immediately as well as the District's Administrative Services Office. There may also be additional reports required by the CVC.

Chapter 3: VEHICLE PARKING

Section 3.1 Parking Prohibited Except in Conformance with this Code

No vehicle shall be stopped, left standing or parked on District property except in conformance with the CVC and with this Code.

Chapter 3.2 Parking Areas – Designation

- (3.2.1) The Chief of Police or their designee shall designate from time to time the various kinds of parking areas and shall place and maintain, or cause to be placed a maintained, such traffic control devices as they may deem necessary or appropriate to give notice of such parking areas. Such designations are subject to change.
- (3.2.2) No other person or entity may designate or restrict parking areas without the express consent of the Chief of Police or their designee.
- (3.2.3) Any person driving, operating, stopping, standing or parking any vehicle shall obey the instructions of any traffic control device applicable thereto, unless otherwise directed by an authorized officer, subject to the exceptions granted to an authorized emergency vehicle and those granted to vehicles bearing a special permit.

Section 3.3 Parking within Marked Space

- (3.3.1) In parking areas where individual parking sparked are designated, every vehicle must be stopped, left standing or parked entirely within the traffic control devices marking a single parking space.
- (3.3.2) Oversized Vehicles that cannot fit within a single parking space may not park on the campus without permission from the Chief of Police or their designee.

Section 3.4 Fire Lanes and Landscaped Areas

- (3.4.1) No vehicle shall be stopped, left standing or parked in marked fire lanes. Emergency vehicles are exempt from this provision when performing first responder duties.
- (3.4.2) No vehicle shall be operated or parked in any median strip, landscaped area, unpaved area or any other area not designated for parking. Emergency vehicles are exempt from this provision when performing first responder duties.

Section 3.5 Parking Areas

- (3.5.1) Parking areas designated for permit parking shall only be used by vehicles bearing the appropriate permit or temporary permit.
- (3.5.2) Parking areas designated with a time limit may be used by any vehicle not to exceed the period of time marked on the traffic control device giving notice of such parking area.
- (3.5.3) Disabled persons parking permits, placards or license plates issued by any State are honored in legal parking spaces on District properties.

(3.5.4) Dwelling or lodging on District properties in any motor vehicle, motor home, trailer, boat or house car on the grounds and roadways of the District without written authorization of Special Permit from the Chief of Police or their designee is prohibited.

Section 3.6 Parking Areas – Hours of Enforcement

Regular Semester Permit and time-controlled parking regulations are enforced Monday through Saturday from 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. unless posted otherwise. All other parking and traffic codes are enforced twenty-four-hours a day, seven days a week. Permit and time-controlled parking is not enforced on Sundays or on District Holidays. <u>Parking will be waived for two weeks at the beginning of every semester, the week before the first day of instruction and the first week of instruction.</u>

Section 3.7 "App Enabled Ride Share Service" Pick Up Locations

App enabled ride share services such as "Uber" or "Lyft" shall occur in zones designated at each specific college. When app enabled ride share services are requested, the individual will refer to a numbered designation which has been predetermined with each respective company. The numbered zones are identified as follows:

San Jose City College

- > Turnaround nearest GE Building
- West Campus nearest 100 Classrooms
- East Campus nearest Student Center

Evergreen Valley College

- West Campus nearest Cedro building
- West Campus nearest LETC pathway
- South Campus nearest MS3
- North Campus nearest VPA

Section 3.8 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations

Electric Vehicle Charging spaces are available to students, college personnel and the public, however vehicles must be plugged in to utilize these spaces. Vehicles that are not plugged in will be subject to a citation. Time limits will be strictly adhered to. As with non-electric vehicles, a vehicle may be left at a charging station for up to 72 hours before it is considered an abandoned vehicle by Police Services. Drivers are encouraged to move their vehicles as soon as they are charged to allow other drivers to utilize the charging stations. Further, drivers will be responsible for the fees incurred during the entire time the car is parked in a charging space, including after the battery is completely charged. A valid SJECCD Permit will be required.

Section 3.9 Storage of Vehicles

- (3.9.1) No vehicle shall be stored without the express permission of the Chief of Police or their designee.
- (3.9.2) Issuance of a District parking permit for a vehicle shall in no way be considered as express or implied consent of the San Jose Evergreen Community College District to any storage of the vehicle on District properties.

Section 3.10 Abandoned Vehicles

Any vehicle that is not in operable condition or stored without the express permission of the Chief of Police or their designee shall be considered abandoned under the applicable section(s) of the CVC.

Section 3.11 Impounding of Vehicles (22651 CVC)

- (3.11.1) Any motor vehicle which does not maintain current vehicle registration or has five (5) outstanding parking citations may be impounded at the owner's expense until such obligations are satisfied.
- (3.11.2) Any motor vehicle parked within designated Tow Away zones or Disabled Parking zones may be impounded at the owner's expense (except emergency vehicles).
- (3.11.3) The process for declaring and removing an abandoned vehicle begins with the attachment of a 72 hour notice and ends with the subsequent towing of the vehicle. Efforts will be made to contact the registered owner of the vehicle in question to determine vehicle retrieval options.

Section 3.12 Temporary "No Parking" Signs

The Chief of Police or their designee is authorized to place temporary "No Parking" signs when necessary. No vehicle shall be parked or left in violation of such temporary restrictions. Vehicles in violation of this order will be subject to enforcement.

Chapter 4: PARKING PERMITS

Section 4.1 Registration and District Permit Required

(4.1.1) Every vehicle that is parked on District properties shall be in possession of a valid San Jose

– Evergreen Community College District permit, with the following exceptions:

- Vehicles displaying valid Disabled Persons placards or Disabled plates issued by any State.
- Vehicles displaying government seals or license plates.
- Vehicles displaying a valid Staff parking permit from any accredited college and may park in Staff parking lots.
- Vehicles displaying a one-day permit.
- Vehicles displaying temporary or special permits issued by the Chief of Police or their designee.
- (4.1.2) Unless otherwise noted on the permit itself or in the instructions with the permit, permits must be affixed to the lower corner of the windshield on the driver's side, so as to be clearly visible from the front of the vehicle. Careful attention should be given to the area immediately around the permit to avoid placing something that may partially or fully block its view.

Section 4.2 District Parking Permits – Ownership and Use

- (4.2.1) Parking permits are the sole property of the San Jose Evergreen Community College District. They may be used only by the registered permit holder(s) and may not be sold or transferred.
- (4.2.2) Use by anyone other than the registered permit holder(s) may be considered fraud or theft of services (including one-day permits).
- (4.2.3) Anyone who intentionally gives false information to receive a parking permit or transportation benefit, or uses a lost, stolen, forged, altered or counterfeited permit (including one-day permits) may lose his or her right to hold a parking permit or receive any other transportation benefit for a period to be determined by the Chief of Police. Such a person may also receive disciplinary action as determined the District.

Section 4.3 Parking Fee Schedule

Parking Fee Permits are subject to change. Please refer to each College's respective catalogue for the most up to date schedule.

Section 4.4 Parking Fee Refund

(4.4.1) Refunds will be made in accordance with the refund policy of the District within the first ten (10) days of instruction of each semester under the following conditions:

- Applicant completes a "Parking Fund Request" available at the Campus Admissions and Records Offices.
- > Refunds are allowed when classes are dropped or cancelled.
- The issued parking permit is returned to the Campus Admissions and records Offices with the refund request.

Section 4.5 Carpool Permits

(4.5.1) Three or more employees may qualify for a Carpool Permit that allows for a discounted parking permit. A holder of a Carpool permit may not simultaneously hold any other parking permit.

Section 4.6 Disabled Persons Parking Permits

- (4.6.1) Disabled Persons parking permits, placards or license plates issued by any state are honored in legal parking spaces on District properties in marked disabled parking spaces. If parked in a space not marked "Disabled Parking" a valid parking permit will be required.
- (4.6.2) Use by anyone other than the registered placard holder or vehicle owner may be considered fraud or theft of services and be in violation of Sections 22507.8 CVC. Unauthorized parking in a disabled parking space and 22511.56 Misuse of Placard or Plate.

Section 4.7 Notification of Change of License Plates or Vehicle

The holder of any District Parking Permit shall notify Police Services within one week of the issuance of new license plates for any vehicle on which the permit may be used.

Section 4.8 Disposition of Registered Vehicle

If a vehicle bearing a District Parking Permit is sold, traded or otherwise disposed of or replaced in use, the Registered Permit Holder shall notify Police Services so that the permit may be voided. A replacement permit will then be issued.

Section 4.9 Parking Permit Requests by SJECCD Staff for visitors, educational programs, special events or athletics.

- Requests for "waived" parking for special events and/or athletics must be pre-approved by the College President. (AP 6750)
- All daily use parking permit request must be submitted to the Vice Presidents of each respective college.
- ➤ Departments in need of extended parking permits for their specific programs **will** be asked to reimburse the parking fund at a set rate.

Chapter 5: ROLLER SKATES, SKATEBOARDS & WHEELED DEVICES

Section 5.1 Prohibited Areas

- (5.1.1) On District properties it shall be prohibited for any person to skate, ride or propel roller skates, in-line skates or similar devices on or within any:
 - Building
 - Courtyard
 - Parking garage (structure)
 - > Entryway
 - > Tennis court
 - Construction site
 - > Stairway, railing, wall, fountain, bench or any other outdoor structure or furnishing not intended for travel

Section 5.2 Acrobatic Skating/Skateboarding

(5.2.1) Acrobatic skating and skateboarding is prohibited on District properties.

Section 5.3 Reckless Skating/Skateboarding

- (5.3.1) It shall be prohibited for any person to skate, ride or propel roller skates, in-line skates or similar devices on District properties, in the following manner:
 - Perform any tricks, stunts, any form of acrobatic actions or other actions that are likely to cause injury or damage property.
 - > Travel at a speed greater than is reasonable and prudent having due regard for the pedestrian or vehicle traffic, width of the sidewalk or roadway, and in no event at a speed which endangers the safety of persons, animals or property.
 - Impede or interfere with the flow of vehicular traffic.
 - Fail to yield to all pedestrians on sidewalks or roadways, including at or in marked or unmarked crosswalks.
 - Fail to obey all stop signs, traffic signals, yield signs and other such traffic control devices
 - > Suddenly leave a curb or other place of safety and travel into the path of a vehicle which is so close as to constitute an immediate hazard.
 - Hitch rides by holding or attaching oneself to any vehicle or other motive device, or allow a person to hitch a ride on any vehicle or motive device.

Section 5.4 Motorized Skateboard

- (5.4.1) It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or ride a motorized skateboard on District property (21968 CVC).
- (5.4.2) It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or ride a motorized wheeled device on District property (21968 CVC).

Chapter 6: BICYCLE EQUIPMENT AND OPERATION

Section 6.1 Laws Applicable to Bicycle Use

- (6.1.1) Every person operating a bicycle on District property has all of the responsibilities applicable to the operator of a vehicle and is subject to all sections applicable under Section 21200 of the CVC.
- (6.1.2) In consideration of being permitted to ride a bicycle on District property, every person operating a bicycle on District property agrees to be bound by the provisions in the Code, including the provisions relating to the cutting of bicycle locks and impounding of bicycles stored in violation of the provisions in Chapter 6.

Section 6.2 Bicycle Equipment

- (6.2.1) All bicycles operated on District property shall be equipped in accordance with the Section 21201 CVC.
- (6.2.2) The owner of the bicycle, in violation of Vehicle Code Section 21201, may be issued a traffic citation to appear in the court having jurisdiction over the area where the offense was committed.

Section 6.3 Bicycle Operation

- (6.3.1) All bicycles operated on District property are subject to the provisions of the CVC, Santa Clara County Ordinances or any San Jose City Ordinances. The operator of any bicycle may be issued a traffic citation to appear in the Court of jurisdiction in accordance with the applicable CVC or Santa Clara County Ordinance sections for violation of any such provisions.
- (6.3.2) Vehicle Code and County Ordinance sections applicable to the operation of bicycles also include but are not limited to those which pertain to safe speed, turning (hand) signals, right-of-way, stop signs and traffic signals.

Section 6.4 Excessive Speed

(6.4.1) No person shall operate a bicycle at a speed greater than is safe under existing conditions. Maximum speed limit in an area where pedestrians are present is 10 mph, unless otherwise posted. Maximum speed limit in any parking lot or parking area is 10 mph, unless otherwise posted.

Section 6.5 Riding Bicycles

(6.5.1) No person shall operate a bicycle:

- On any pedestrian walk, ramp, mall, or patio where signs are posted indicating that bicycle riding is prohibited.
- ➤ On any sidewalk where there is an adjacent, parallel roadway or bicycle path; such sidewalk need not be posted.
- On any ramp established for the use of persons with disabilities.
- ➤ On any landscaped area. For the purpose of this Section, a landscaped area shall be defined as any unpaved area that has been planted with grass, trees, or shrubbery or which has been graded or improved for purposes other than use by vehicular traffic including undeveloped fields and agricultural areas.
- Inside any campus building.

Appendix "A"

Section 1.6 Definitions

Unless the provision or context otherwise requires, these definitions shall govern the construction and application of this code:

- (1.6.1) **Acrobatic Skating.** Acrobatic skating occurs when all wheels of a skateboard, or of both skates, are simultaneously out of contact with the ground during skating and skateboarding.
- (1.6.2) **Bicycle**. A bicycle is a device upon which any person may ride, propelled exclusively by human power through a belt, chain, or gears, and having one or more wheels.
- (1.6.3) **Blue Zone.** A "Blue Zone" is a parking area restricted for use by vehicles displaying a valid Disabled Person's placard or license plate.
- (1.6.4) **Campus Safety Officer (CSO).** "Campus Safety Officers" are non-sworn personnel who perform security, parking enforcement and traffic control functions for Police Services on the grounds of the San Jose Evergreen Community College District.
- (1.6.5) **Designated Parking Areas.** Areas which may be identified by the presence of signs, curb markings, parking space markings, or other similar devices commonly used to indicate motor vehicle parking spaces or bicycle parking areas.
- (1.6.6) **District Parking Permit.** A "District Parking Permit" is any parking permit issued by Campus Police to faculty, staff, students and others.
- (1.6.7) **Emergency Zone.** A curbside required for use by emergency vehicles only and designated by red paint, stenciling and/or signage.
- (1.6.8) **Electric Vehicles.** Electric Vehicles (also known as plug electric vehicles) derive all or part of their power from electricity supplied by the electric grid. They also include AEVs and PHEVs. AEVs (all-electric vehicles) are powered by one or more electric motors. The receive electricity by plugging into the grid and store it in batteries. They consume no petroleum-based fuel and produce no tailpipe emissions. PHEV's (plug-in hybrid electric vehicles) use batteries to power an electric motor, plug into the electric grid to charge, and use a petroleum based or alternative fuel to power the internal combustion engine. Some types of PHEV's are also called extended-range electric vehicles (EREVs).
- (1.6.9) **Fire Lane.** An access roadway for Fire Department vehicles, not less than 20 feet wide, marked with a red curb and/or bounded by an 8" wide red line, marked as "No Parking at Anytime" or posted with "Fire Lane No Parking" signs.
- (1.6.10) **Green Zone.** Green curbing indicates time-limit parking.

- (1.6.11) **Impound.** The confiscation and storage of a motor vehicle or a bicycle in a location designated by the Chief of Police
- (1.6.12) **Landscaped Areas.** Any unpaved area that has been planted with grass, or ornamental trees or shrubbery or which has been graded or improved for purposes other than vehicle parking including undeveloped fields and agricultural areas, bark covered and decomposed granite areas, or any paved or brick patio area.
- (1.6.13) **Loading Zone.** A "Loading Zone" is an area designated by yellow curbing or signage, where stopping is allowed only for the purpose of loading or unloading passengers or freight for the time specified. "Loading Zones" may be restricted to "Commercial Plates Only".
- (1.6.14) **Motor-Driven Cycle.** A "motor-driven cycle" is any motorcycle with a motor that displaces less than 150 cubic centimeters. A motor-driven cycle does not include a motorized bicycle, as defined in the following definition.
- (1.6.15) **Motorized Bicycle.** A "motorized bicycle" or "moped" is any two-wheeled or three-wheeled device having fully operative pedals for propulsion by human power, or having no pedals if powered solely by electrical energy, and an automatic transmission and a motor which produces less than two (2) gross brake horsepower and is capable of propelling the device a maximum speed of not more than 30 miles per hour on level ground.
- (1.6.16) **Motorized Electric Bicycle.** A "motorized electric bicycle" is a device that has fully operative pedals for propulsion by human power and has an electric motor that meets all of the following requirements: a) Has a power output of not more than 1000 watts. b) Is incapable of propelling the device at a speed of more than 20 miles per hour on level ground. c) Is incapable of further increasing the speed of the device when human power is used to propel the motorized bicycle faster than 20 miles per hour.
- (1.6.17) **Motor Vehicle.** A "Motor Vehicle" is a vehicle which is self-propelled, including a motorcycle, motor scooter, moped, low speed vehicle (LSV), or golf cart. "Motor Vehicle" does not include a self-propelled wheelchair, invalid tricycle, motorized quadricycle or golf cart when operated by or on behalf of a person who, by reason of physical disability, is otherwise unable to move about as a pedestrian.
- (1.6.18) **Motorcycle Parking Area.** A "Motorcycle Parking Area" is an area for parking motorcycles, motor scooters, or mopeds.
- (1.6.19) **Motorized Wheeled Device.** A "motorized wheeled device" is a device with two or more wheels designed to be ridden upon or attached to a person and may be propelled with a motor. This definition includes but is not limited to gasoline and electrically powered scooters, skateboards, inline skates, Segways, and similar devices. It does not include licensed motor vehicles, motorized bicycles, motor driven cycles, motorized electric bicycles, motorized scooters, and devices designed for use by persons with physical disabilities.

- (1.6.20) Motorized Quadricycle and Motorized Tricycle. A "motorized quadricycle" is a four-wheeled device, and a "motorized tricycle" is a three-wheeled device, designed to carry not more than two persons, including the driver, and having either an electric motor or a motor with an automatic transmission developing less than two gross brake horsepower and capable of propelling the device a maximum speed of not more than 30 miles per hour on level ground. The device shall be utilized only by a person who by reason of physical disability is otherwise unable to move about as a pedestrian.
- (1.6.21) **Motorized Scooter.** A "motorized scooter" is any two-wheeled device that has handlebars, is designed to be stood or sat upon by the operator, and is powered by an electric motor that is capable of propelling the device with or without human propulsion. For purposes of this section, a motor driven cycle, motorized bicycle, motorized electric bicycle, or a motorized wheeled device as defined in this section is not a motorized scooter.
- (1.6.22) **Oversized Vehicle.** An oversized vehicle is a vehicle that cannot fit within a single marked parking space.
- (1.6.23) **Park or Parking.** To stop or allow to stand, any vehicle including a bicycle, whether occupied or not.
- (1.6.24) **Pedestrian.** A "pedestrian" is any person who is afoot or who is using a means of conveyance propelled by human power other than a bicycle. A "Pedestrian" includes any person who is operating a self-propelled wheelchair, invalid tricycle, or motorized quadricycle and, by reason of physical disability, is otherwise unable to move about as a pedestrian.
- (1.6.25) **Police Services Department.** Police Services is the "Police Department" for the San Jose Evergreen Community College District. Police Services provides law enforcement, security, safety, crime prevention, and emergency services on District properties during the following hours: Monday thru Saturday 7:00 AM to 11:00 PM, Sunday 7:00 AM to 3:00 PM and District observed holidays 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM.
- (1.6.26) **Prohibited Parking.** Restriction which may be designated and identified by the presence of signs prohibiting any vehicle, including a bicycle, whether occupied or not, to stop or park.
- (1.6.27) **Reckless Skateboarding/Skating.** Reckless skateboarding/skating occurs when such activity may pose a significant risk of injury to another person, damage to District facilities, or damage to another person's property.
- (1.6.28) **Red Zone.** Red curbing indicates that no stopping, standing or parking is permitted.
- (1.6.29) **Registered Permit Holder(s).** A "Registered Permit Holder" is a person to whom a parking permit has been issued by Police Services.

- (1.6.30) **Restricted Space.** Spaces which may be designated and identified by the presence of posted signs, curb markings, parking space markings or other similar devices commonly used to indicate motor vehicle parking spaces.
- (1.6.31) **Roadway.** That portion of a highway improved, designed, or ordinarily used for vehicular travel. A highway is a way or place of whatever nature, publicly maintained and open to the use of the public for purposes of vehicular or bicycle travel. Roadway includes streets and parking facilities.
- (1.6.32) **Segway.** A two-wheeled, self-balancing electrical device used for personal transport. These devices may be used on campus by persons with mobility related disabilities after securing a permit from Police Services.
- (1.6.33) **Sidewalk.** Is that portion of a highway, other than the roadway, set apart by curbs, barriers, markings or other delineation for pedestrian travel (CVC 555).
- (1.6.34) **Skating.** To propel one's self along on roller skates, inline skates, a skateboard or any similar device.
- (1.6.35) **Space Markings.** Lines designating the boundaries of a parking stall or space within which vehicles are required to park.
- (1.6.36) **Service Vehicle.** A "Service Vehicle" is any Motor Vehicle owned by the District or any other entity used for service, delivery or other business on District Properties.
- (1.6.37) **Traffic.** Pedestrians, ridden animals, vehicles, bicycles and other conveyances either singularly or together, while using any highway or roadway for the purpose of travel.
- (1.6.38) **Traffic Campus Safety Officer (TCSO).** "Campus Safety Officers" are non-sworn personnel who perform security, parking enforcement and traffic control functions for Police Services on the grounds of the San Jose Evergreen Community College District.
- (1.6.39) **Traffic Control Device.** A "Traffic Control Device" is any sign, signal, marking, or device consistent with Section 21400 of the Vehicle Code, placed or erected for the purpose of regulating, warning or guiding traffic.
- (1.6.40) **Vehicle.** A device by which a person or property may be moved, propelled or drawn upon a highway, except a device moved by human power.
- (1.6.41) **Violation.** The doing of any act forbidden or the failure to perform any act required by this Code or the CVC.

- (1.6.42) **Vehicle Code.** "Vehicle Code" means the California Vehicle Code. It will also be referred as the CVC in this Code.
- (1.6.43) **Walkway/pathway.** A path, trail, route or way consisting of a paved or unpaved area that is intended for pedestrian use.
- (1.6.44) **White Zone.** White curbing indicates a restricted parking area as specified by curb stenciling or signage (e.g. Service/District Vehicle parking or a passenger loading/unloading area, only (no standing).
- (1.6.45) **Yellow Zone.** Yellow curbing indicates a Loading Zone.